301 South McDowell Street
’ Wake County Raleigh, NC

P\' .
WAKE . .
COUNTY Meeting Minutes
Board of Commissioners
Monday, August 12, 2019 2:00 PM Wake County Justice Center

Work Session

Meeting Called to Order: Chair Jessica Holmes

Present: 7 - Chair Jessica Holmes, Vice-Chair Greg Ford, Commissioner
Vickie Adamson, Commissioner Matt Calabria, Commissioner
Susan Evans, Commissioner Sig Hutchinson, and
Commissioner James West

Present: David Ellis, County Manager; Beth Smerko, Senior Deputy
County Attorney; and Johnna Rogers, Chief Operating Officer.

Staff Present: Chris Dillon, Assistant County Manager; Nicole Kreiser,
Assistant County Manager; Ben Canada, Assistant to the County Manager;
Bill Greeves, Chief Information & Innovation Officer; Emily Lucas, Chief
Financial Officer; Derwick Paige; Chief Community Vitality Officer; Dara
Demi, Communications Director; Denise Hogan, Clerk to the Board;
Yvonne Gilyard, Deputy Clerk to the Board; Michelle Cerett, Executive
Assistant to the Board.; Michelle Venditto, Budget and Management
Services Director; Margaret Murphy, Senior Budget & Management
Analyst; Kelly Stratton, Communications Manager; Denise Foreman,
Assistant County Manager; Alice Avery, Communications Specialist; Ken
Murphy, Senior Assistant County Attorney; Allison Cooper, Senior
Assistant County Attorney; Andrew Sawyer, Communications Specialist;
Lorena McDowell, Housing Director; Tim Maloney, Planning, Development,
and Inspections Director; and Bryan Coates, Planner lll.

Others Present: Frank Eagles, Mayor, Town of Rolesville; John Byrne,
Mayor, Town of Fuquay-Varina; Adam Mitchell, Town Manager, Town of
Fuquay-Varina; Samantha Smith, Planning Director, Town of
Fuquay-Varina; Mark Matthews, Assistant Town Manager; Town of
Fuquay-Varina; Jay Myers, Public Utilities Director; Town of
Fuquay-Varina; Allyssa Stafford, Planner Il, Town of Fuquay-Varina; Akul
Nashawala, Senior Planner, Town of Fuquay-Varina; and Michael Haley,

Wake County Page 1 Printed on 8/21/2019



Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 12, 2019

Senior Vice President, Raleigh Chamber of Commerce.

1. Agenda
Attachments: Agenda BOC Work Session 08-12-2019 format.pdf

Chair Holmes said the board is taking steps to ensure transparency. She
said this is the first Work Session to be live streamed by the Board of
Commissioners. She said that the public could view the meeting on
Raleigh Television Network or live stream. She shared the topics for the
agenda today. she said the public comments will be allowed during
Regular Board Meetings. She shared a schedule of the items to be
discussed at regular meetings. She said the board will take action on the
Hospitality Tax projects at the August 19th regular meeting of the board. A
public hearing will be held regarding the Fuquay-Varina ETJ on September
3rd, and the board will take action on it at the September 16th meeting.

2. Hospitality Tax Recommendations

Attachments: 1. Presentation to BOC 8-12 v2.pdf

2. Questions From Wake County Commissioners for August 12 Work
Session.docx
3. Financial Models.pdf

4. Letters from Stakeholders.pdf

Ms. Denise Foreman, Assistant County Manager, shared the agenda for
the process overview. She shared updated revenues for the year end, total
funding commitments, proposals for consideration, and additional
information that will be addressed. She shared the Interlocal Review
Information, recap of the process, funding recommendations summary,
projects supported with assumptions, updated revenue projections, and
current revenue and current commitments.

Ms. Foreman shared an overview of the board questions and feedback.

Key Areas:
+ Consider additional funding for PNC Arena
+ Evaluate medium project funding to support additional projects
» Consider broader economic development impact associated with
Downtown South Project

She shared the alternative proposal for consideration.

+ Based on feedback from July 8 Board Presentation and Board

Wake County Page 2 Printed on 8/21/2019


http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26820
http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=407be01d-3344-4a05-aed0-f1450467f7ba.pdf
http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26825
http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=592f5c31-14a8-4981-bd72-8ffabdcb227e.pdf
http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=24029380-af84-4aaa-a5a3-a561037058c1.docx
http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6e259e00-f2ed-4967-bae0-c879cef2df53.pdf
http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d03f2bd8-856c-4839-948f-5c8310b0cf90.pdf

Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 12, 2019

questions, staff has prepared an alternative proposal for
consideration:
»  Provide $9M annually for PNC Arena
* Increase medium projects from $42.1M to $46.6M
» Launch joint feasibility study with City of Raleigh to evaluate
soccer stadium/ entertainment complex at Downtown South
« Establish process to complete by December 2019

Ms. Foreman said that staff has been working with the City of Raleigh and
the project total has been reduced by $1 million. A feasibility joint study is
being recommended with the City of Raleigh for the Downtown South
project.

Ms. Foreman shared an alternative proposal for planned expenses.

+ Based on feedback from July 8 Board Presentation and Board
questions, staff has prepared an alternative proposal for
consideration:

* Provide $9M annually for PNC Arena
* Increase medium projects from $42.1M to $46.6M
* Launch joint feasibility study with City of Raleigh to evaluate
soccer stadium/ entertainment complex at Downtown South
+ Establish process to complete by December 2019

She shared the next steps.

Commissioner Adamson asked about the cost of the feasibility study. Ms.
Foreman said that the cost could vary, but hospitality tax funds would not be
used.

Commissioner Hutchinson said that the presentation was thorough and
complimented staff for looking at the various mid-grade projects. He said
the Downtown South project is visionary. He said the Rocky Branch Creek
could be connected to the greenway through Dix Park and into South
Raleigh. He said there is opportunity for Raleigh and the feasibility study
can bring forth the funding options.

Commissioner Evans said she was pleased with the way staff took
feedback from the commissioners and provided alternatives. She is
pleased with the funding commitment from the PNC Arena. She agreed
that the feasibility study is necessary for the Downtown South project. She
asked for clarification on whether the county would only be involved in the
stadium. Ms. Foreman said that affordable housing may have county
involvement.

Wake County Page 3 Printed on 8/21/2019



Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 12, 2019

Chair Holmes said the stadium would only involve hospitality type funds and
the county would want to be involved in the surrounding development and
opportunity zones. She clarified that the additional $1 million is for 25
years. She said the county recommendations would also need to be
approved by the City of Raleigh Council. She said after speaking with
council members, the council members are supportive of the Downtown
South project. She said addressing the match for the small and medium
projects would be advantageous to extend the outreach and involve
non-profits that may now be on the current agenda of the board.

Commissioner West said that he has spoken with key leaders about the
Downtown South project and he said he wants to ensure that the best
options for the citizens in southeast Raleigh are reached.

Chair Holmes clarified that the soccer stadium and the indoor sports arena
are two different projects.

Mr. David Ellis, County Manager, clarified that this conversation is about
the Downtown South Stadium. He said the feasibility study is for the
stadium project.

Commissioner West said that in previous discussions there were benefits
for underserved areas and it is important for that to happen. He said the
project should be wholistic.

Vice-Chair Ford said that this is an opportunity to be strategic. He
supports the proposal that staff has presented and is looking forward to the
feasibility study.

Ms. Foreman said that understanding impacts to existing buildings,
building programming, proforma, and sensitivity analysis would be helpful.

Commissioner Hutchinson said that in the beginning when the PNC Arena
discussions were held there were various options discussed. He noted
that there are portions of land that could be used for affordable housing.

Commissioner Adamson asked whether the RFP will cover the feasibility
study cost. Ms. Foreman said that hospitality tax will not be used.

Mr. Ellis said that funds would be identified for the feasibility study. He said
that staff would look at other models in compartive counties that are similar.

Chair Holmes said the economic impacts should be brought forward with
the study. She said affordable housing, workforce housing, greenways, and
open spaces are all items that the county would be interested in pursuing.

Wake County Page 4 Printed on 8/21/2019



Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 12, 2019

Commissioner Calabria echoed commissioners support of a feasibility
study. He said that this is similar to the process of the Wake County
Transit Plan. He said that since the last meeting of the board, there have
been concerns about bringing projects forward with the application process
for funding. He said that he agrees with staff recommendations. He
complimented staff for being responsive to the feedback from the
commissioners.

Commissioner West said geographic equity is important. He said that he
recently attended a conference at the Greater Raleigh Chamber of
Commerce on diversity and equity. He said that alternatives and options
should be looked at in how it is related toward the hotel and motel tax. He
said a synergistic whole and strategic approach is necessary.

Ms. Beth Smerko, Senior Deputy County Attorney, said that the feasibility
study will be helpful, and the document will address the concerns of the
board. She said there are statutory restrictions that will not allow the county
hospitality funds to be used for the feasibility study.

Chair Holmes said that many have received their property tax bills and the
funding for a feasibility study cannot come from property taxes.

Commissioner Adamson said engaging the community will be valuable to
the project.

Ms. Foreman said the general consensus is for approving the alternate
proposal.

+ Based on feedback from July 8 Board Presentation and Board
questions, staff has prepared an alternative proposal for
consideration:

»  Provide $9M annually for PNC Arena

* Increase medium projects from $42.1M to $46.6M

» Launch joint feasibility study with City of Raleigh to evaluate

soccer stadium/ entertainment complex at Downtown South
+ Establish process to complete by December 2019

She shared the next steps for approving the proposal. She complimented
the City of Raleigh staff and the Wake County staff that have worked on the
project.

Commissioner West said the feasibility study is to look at the downtown
soccer stadium and keeping everyone on the same page is important.

Commissioner Evans asked for clarification that the board will not be
voting on the approval of the feasibility study at the next regular meeting.

Wake County Page 5 Printed on 8/21/2019



Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 12, 2019

Ms. Foreman confirmed that and said the vote would be to consider the
alternate proposal presented today.

Commissioner Evans commended staff for their diligence in including all
stakeholders on the hospitality tax projects process this year.

Ms. Foreman said the Tri-Party Agreement would be needed for the
Centennial Authority use once the amendment is approved.

Chair Holmes asked the board if they are comfortable voting on the
alternative proposal at the next meeting.

Commissioner Adamson requested that the vote include verification that
revenue from the parking deck would be credited to the Inter-Local funds.

Mr. Ellis said a parking garage incentive would be part of an incentive to
bring hotels here in Raleigh.

Chair Holmes said that if the funding for the parking deck is shared
between the city and the county, the revenues should also be shared.

Ms. Foreman said staff would work with the City of Raleigh to obtain the
language for the parking infrastructure.

A ten-minute break was taken. The meeting went into recess then the
meeting reconvened

Chair Holmes shared that there was some exciting news released today.
Ms. Lorena McDowell, Wake County Housing Director, said the housing
department will receive tax credits to develop 563 new affordable housing
units. She said the county goal is 500 new units of affordable housing per
year, and that has been exceeded already for Fiscal Year 19-20.

Ms. McDowell said the county received the tax credits last year for 193 new
units. She said the tax credit process was overhauled and revamped this
year. She said every proposal was reviewed closely prior to being
submitted to the state. She said the process is competitive across the

state and her staff did a great job of securing funding for Wake County. She
said of the nine projects put forward, six of them will receive financing. She
said the Clty of Raleigh is also getting 160 new affordable housing units.
She said the county put in $6.3 million for the gap financing. She said this
was made possible by the one cent tax dedicated to affordable housing.
She said there is funding being returned to the county for projects that were
not completed last year. She said those funds will be used to add even
more affordable housing units this year.

Wake County Page 6 Printed on 8/21/2019



Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 12, 2019

Commissioner West asked Ms. McDowell if she is comfortable with the
Average Median Income (AMI.) Ms. McDowell said yes and additional
subsidies were requested for the new properties.

Chair Holmes referenced the poem "phenomenal woman" and said Ms.
McDowell comes to mind when she thinks of it. She commended Ms.
McDowell for her phenomenal efforts.

Ms. McDowell said that the vision of the board, the support of the County
Manager, and her great staff have made this all possible.

3. Town of Fuquay-Varina's Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) Request

Attachments: BOC Work Session 8-12-19.pdf
1. June 10 2019 BOC Work Session slides.pdf
2. FV ETJ BOC Staff Report.doc
3. FV ETJ PB 5-1-2019 Staff Report.doc

4. 2019-2024 Five Year Plan Capital Utility Projects 2019-04-23 B (1)

003).pdf
5. Land Use Plan- ETJ Criteria.pdf

6. Wake Tech Community College Letter.pdf
7. Combined Emails-FV ETJ Fall 2018-May 2019.pdf

8. Call Email Log.xlsx

Mr. Tim Maloney, Wake County Planning, Development, and Inspections
Director, shared the purpose of today's meeting. He said the proposed
hearing date for the Town of Fuquay-Varina Extra Territorial Jurisdiction
(ETJ) request is September 3, 2019 and a vote on the item would take
place at the September 16th meeting. He shared maps of the county and
municipal density.

He shared variations between county and municipal Extra-Territorial
Jurisdiction (ETJ).

Mr. Maloney shared how ETJ effects property owners.

= ETJ extension is NOT annexation

» ETJ residents DO NOT pay municipal taxes

= Property converts from county zoning to municipal zoning

* Bona-fide farms are EXEMPT from municipal and county zoning
until the farm use ceases operation

= Residents can continue using private wells and septic systems

= ETJ residents CAN JOIN the municipal Planning Board & Board of
Adjustment

= ETJ residents CANNOT VOTE in municipal elections

Wake County Page 7 Printed on 8/21/2019


http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26821
http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=696c9559-045e-469d-a667-9fea4e2a8de8.pdf
http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e14bf4c0-0968-46f1-8e1c-b12058acf177.pdf
http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=456aab73-add4-40aa-b0ec-e186d76448be.doc
http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=afea8357-3df6-4417-bdbf-abb88286f19a.doc
http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6f49f912-ecaf-4228-ba4b-ea1a814992ed.pdf
http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4aa0b857-0c01-4066-bdf8-3ccdbbb1cb00.pdf
http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b4b9e4c7-7ca9-4b80-b9c1-bda0203def6d.pdf
http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=885b973b-7293-40b3-a1b2-1a92c7a3c8ad.pdf
http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d0e1c157-0fcc-47af-b450-34bfa5a2ce4f.xlsx

Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 12, 2019

Mr. Maloney shared the Planning Board recommendations.

= Planning Board recommendation is 11,870 acres.

» Recommended area is consistent with the Town’s expected growth
pattern, adopted water and sewer plans, and the County’s ETJ
criteria.

Commissioner Hutchinson asked if the Planning Board would be providing
an explanation of their recommendation.

Mr. Maloney said the Planning Board members were not able to be present
today, but he shared the reasoning for their recommendation. He said the
Planning Board felt the area they removed was more established. He said
the two new areas were added due to the expansion of I-540. Mr. Maloney
said those areas may be more prone to development due to that
expansion.

Mr. Maloney shared the 2019-2024 town utilities in the recommended ETJ
area. He shared a bar chart of the town infrastructure. He shared photos of
the skirting for mobile home requirements.

Commissioner Evans asked about the definition of a mobile home park
and a mobile home subdivision. Mr. Maloney said the land for a mobile
home park is typically owned by one person and the lot sizes are small. He
said lots in a mobile home subdivision are larger and often individually
owned.

Chair Holmes asked if there were specific subdivisions that have
expressed concern due to the skirting issues. Mr. Maloney said one owner
has expressed concern. He said existing skirting would be grandfathered
in to the new regulations. He said that resident wouldn't need to take any
action unless he replaces the home.

Mr. Maloney shared concerns that were expressed related to farm animals.

» Bona-fide farms are EXEMPT from municipal and county zoning
until the farm use ceases operation

= The maximum number of chickens shall not exceed 10

= The number of agricultural animals are limited on lots less than two
acres

= Lots greater than two acres have no limitation on agricultural
animals

Mr. Maloney shared the staff findings.

Wake County Page 8 Printed on 8/21/2019



Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 12, 2019

» The Town’s ETJ request is in accordance with North Carolina State
law

= The Town’s ETJ request is large, but includes portions consistent
with the County’s criteria for ETJ expansion

= The Town is actively preparing for growth prompted by future NC
540 and the availability of land with municipal services

= The Town’s CIP provides a 5-year plan for infrastructure
improvements in the recommended area

= The Town is experiencing growth pressure by recent annexations
and municipal utility extensions

» Staff and the Planning Board both recommend granting ETJ area
less than the Town’s request

Mr. Maloney shared the next steps.

» Board of Commissioners Public Hearing - September 3rd

» Board of Commissioners Final Consideration - September 16th

= Property owners in the request area will be notified of the public
hearing

»  Visit www.wakegov.com/fvetj <http://www.wakegov.com/fvetj> for
more information and meeting documents

Chair Holmes introduced Fuquay-Varina Town Mayor, John Byrne and
gave him an opportunity to offer input.

Mayor Byrne said the sewer treatment plant, new library, new fire stations,
and a new park are all projects that contribute to the future of the Town of
Fuquay-Varina. He said that his team has worked with Wake County staff
on this expansion for two years. He said the town has grown from 7,000
residents to 30,000 since he has become Mayor.

Mr. Adam Mitchell, Fuquay-Varina Town Manager, said the ETJ request
has been thoroughly vetted and is reasonable. He said that citizen
concerns have been addressed and staff has looked at expectations of
other areas for the best interest of the public.

Mr. Mitchell introduced Town staff that were present: Samantha Smith,
Planning Director; Mark Matthews, Assistant Town Manager; Jay Myers,
Public Utilities Director; Allyssa Stafford, Planner Il; and Akul Nashawala,
Senior Planner.

Chair Holmes asked for clarification of the distinction of the differences in
the land area in the request.

Wake County Page 9 Printed on 8/21/2019



Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 12, 2019

Mr. Mitchell said the state statue indicates that a three-mile extension is
allowed. He said the town can support the extension. He said the Capital
Improvement Plan is for five years and provides a long-range vision. He
said that the request is not unreasonable. He said that future requests for
expansion may be necessary, but the current recommendation is on target.

Commissioner Hutchinson said the county is half way through the creation
of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan. He asked how this request fits
within the plan. Mr. Maloney said the proposal would not be any different
than what the comprehensive plan indicates today. He said that policy
discussions would be held in the future.

Commissioner Adamson said that there has been concern about mobile
home restrictions impacting affordable housing. She asked if there is
flexibility in the restrictions. Mr. Mitchell said there are current mobile home
parks within the Town's ETJ and those residents have not had a problem
complying with the skirting requirement. He said the new mobile home
skirting requirement is consistent with other municipalities in the county.

Mayor Byrne said current residents will be grandfathered in to the skirting
requirements.

Commissioner West asked if there is an affordable housing plan for the
town. Mr. Mitchell said there are multi-housing, town home, and
single-family options being addressed through the town's Land Use Plan.

Chair Holmes said that she has participated with Habitat for Humanity
projects along with other commissioners in the Fuquay-Varina area.

Mr. Mitchell said the Town Central Zoning District has allowed for more
affordable homes in the town and a provision for accessory apartments.

Commissioner West asked if there are any Wake County Housing
Authority unit options. Mr. Mitchell said there is a variety of housing
options.

Mayor Byrne said there are non-conforming lots that needed affordable
housing. He said the town is looking for little opportunities to make a
difference.

Commissioner Calabria said his home was on the initial proposal and is
included in one of the areas removed by the Wake County Planning Board.
He asked if there is a need for recusal when the items are voted on. Mr.
Ken Murphy, Senior Assistant County Attorney, said there was not a need
for recusal. He said the process for the public hearing would allow for
public comment and participation by citizens.

Wake County Page 10 Printed on 8/21/2019



Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 12, 2019

Commissioner Calabria asked about the non bona-fide farms and their
animal limits.

Ms. Samantha Smith, Fuquay-Varina Planning Director, shared the
limitations with farm animals and said the town intends to balance the
farming.

Commissioner Calabria asked about the recent letter from Wake Tech that
the board received in reference to the permitting purposes and the town's
position.

Mr. Mitchell said the letter indicates building inspections would be handled
by the county and there are two issues. He said the process has been
evaluated by the town and the findings were not a business case for the
town not to provide building inspections for Wake County projects. He said
Wake Tech is a water customer of the Town of Fuquay-Varina and
inspectors pass by the college each day in the corporate limits of
Fuquay-Varina and can provide top level services to the college as they are
included in the ETJ expansion.

Commissioner Evans said that she has seen Wake County grow in this
area. She said the expansion is a serious task. She complimented staff
and town officials for their work. She said the proposal is logical. She said
that naturally occurring affordable housing allows for municipal areas to
expand with various types of housing.

Mayor Byrne said that meetings have taken place with citizens that have
concerns and staff has explained the process to them. He complimented
Wake County staff for working with the town to move through a systematic
process and listening along the way.

Chair Holmes thanked the county and town staff for working together on this
project.

Mr. Ellis recognized Mr. Bryan Coates, Wake County Planner Ill, and
announced this would be his last meeting as he moves to the Town of
Wendell as the Assistant Planning Director.

4, Socially Responsible Hiring Incentives

Attachments: Social Incentives Slides.pdf

Mr. Chris Dillon, Assistant County Manager, introduced Mr. Michael Haley,
Senior Vice-President, Raleigh Chamber of Commerce, and thanked him
for attending today.

Wake County Page 11 Printed on 8/21/2019


http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26822
http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cb2bac5f-9755-4da0-b886-245f935f3f71.pdf

Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes

August 12, 2019

Mr.Dillon shared the Economic Strength Board Goals.

Objective ES3: Develop economic development strategies and
tools that encourage socially responsible business practices,
environmental stewardship, affordable housing, high quality of life
and return on investments that produce societal benefits

ES3.1: Explore a multi-criteria policy for economic development
incentives to include work with vulnerable communities.

He shared the economic growth chart.

Wake County has continued exponential growth

Great place to live ranked nationally

High wage job creation

Although, some people are left behind, 45,000 households earn
$25,000 annually

He shared a map of the vulnerable communities. He shared the targeted
growth area tier.

He shared the community development impacts.

Focusing economic development in certain areas of the county may
increase demographic trends

Areas of the county will see positive impacts of location of major
employers

How can the county influence health and wealth of residents?

He shared the map of the lack of upward mobility in the southeast. He
shared the information on the lack of upward mobility in NC. He shared a
chart of Wake County upward mobility resources. He shared information
about Wake County employee benefits.

Employees receive a minimum salary of Wake County Living Wage
Health insurance provided to employees and offered to spouses
and dependents

Equal pay for performance hiring policy

Second chance hiring practices, including removal of prior
conviction checkoffs

Minimum of forty hours of bereavement leave for employees
Minimum of eight weeks of parental leave for employees

Minimum of sixteen hours of volunteer leave annually for employees
Opportunities for improvement of health and wellness of employees

Wake County

Page 12

Printed on 8/21/2019



Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 12, 2019

He shared the recommendations for socially responsible employment
bonus. He shared the employment bonus information.

Socially Responsible Employment - 5% additional of new tax
growth

After qualifying for a Business Development Grant under Wake County
policy, new or existing companies may be eligible for a Business
Development Grant Bonus when locating or expanding in Wake County
and meeting the following conditions:

+ Employees receive a minimum salary of Wake County Living Wage

* Health insurance provided to employees and offered to spouses
and dependents

+ Demonstrate equal pay for performance hiring policy

+ Demonstrate second chance hiring practices, including removal of
prior conviction checkoffs

*  Provide a minimum of forty hours of bereavement leave for
employees

* Provide a minimum of eight weeks of parental leave for employees

* Provide a minimum of sixteen hours of volunteer leave annually for

employees

* Provide opportunities for improvement of health and wellness of
employees

* Must qualify for an existing Wake County economic development
incentive

« Companies are not required to offer any of the employment benefits

*  Purely a voluntary program to receive an additional 5%
reimbursement of paid property taxes

* Local match is not required on the bonus percentage

» Verification through current incentive certification and audit process

Mr. Dillon shared the next steps.

Chair Holmes said that second chances and Raise the Age should also be
highlights. She said the LGBTQ protections should be added. She said
the equal pay language should be stronger. Mr. Dillion said he would work
on these additions.

Ms. Smerko said the proposal is an incentive that the county can move
forward on. She said care should be taken in the language so preempting
is avoided.

Commissioner West said that the strategies have been relaxed recently
and asked whether the Department of Commerce rules can be included in

Wake County Page 13 Printed on 8/21/2019



Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 12, 2019

the standards. He said that priorities are obvious and measurements
would be helpful in the targeting process. He shared the processes since
2010 on the White Paper initiative. He said there are citizens that are in
the shadow around familiar faces. He said that enlightenment is important
and he is hopeful that Wake County has a model that can be shared with
others.

Mr. Ellis said the county uses the Minority and Women-Owned Business
Enterprise (MWBE) Model and will look at other models.

Commissioner Calabria suggested that staff look at the Research
Technology Institute model when developing standards. He said one
overall incentive or individual incentives he has questioned in the past but
feels like this process is more effective. He said that return to work
programs, green practices, hiring of disadvantaged individuals, and
domestic partner benefits insurance benefits should be explored.

Chair Holmes said these projects have already been accomplished.

Mr. Dillion addressed Commissioner Calabria's incentive suggestions and
said there are tax incentives already in place for those items.

Vice-Chair Ford complimented staff and asked Mr. Haley to share his
thoughts.

Mr. Haley said discussions have taken place and incentives are an
important aspect for Wake County for economic mobility moving forward.

Commissioner West said there is a paradigm mindset shift to the
leadership. He said there must be a strategy to involve the grass roots
efforts. He said the diversity approach can build on the strength that
already exists.

Mr. Haley said at the recent Greater Raleigh Chamber of Commerce
Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Conference he shared that it is important to
have crucial conversations.

Commissioner Adamson said including minority businesses is key.

Mr. Dillion said that there is plentiful leadership to push staff in the right
direction.

Chair Holmes thanked staff for making this a reality.

Mr. Dillon said he would work on the Wake County Economic Development
language.

Wake County Page 14 Printed on 8/21/2019



Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 12, 2019

5. Policy Workflow Items

Attachments: Policy Workflow Item.docx

Mr. Ellis said that that Commissioner West would like to discuss funding for
the African American Cultural Festival.

Commissioner Hutchinson left the meeting at 4:45 P.M

Commissioner West shared information about the African American

Cultural Festival. He said the committee membership consists of seven
members from the Raleigh City County and seven members from the
county. He said when he served on the Raleigh City Council, $75,000 in
funding was given annually by the city. He said the county provided $25,000
of that funding. He asked for an additional $10,000 for the event from the
county. He asked for the board to support the additional funding. He said
diversity brings forth the pride of the accomplishments.

Mr. Ellis said the funding is not budgeted and options are to find the funds,
refer to a committee, or move the request through the public agency
process.

Commissioner Adamson asked if there was a reason the request deadline
was missed through the board's regular budget process. Commissioner
West said there has been leadership change on the board.

Vice-Chair Ford said that the African American Cultural Festival is
important. He asked about the changes from ten years ago and where the
additional funds would be used.

Commissioner West said the request for additional funding was declined
by a previous board. He said the funding needs have been generated by
new Executive Director, additional volunteers, permits, and more
programming for families and youth.

Vice-Chair Ford said there is value and history for supporting the festival.
He said that that any board member can bring forward a request, but he is
hesitant to amend the budget at this time for this festival.

Commissioner Evans echoed Vice-Chair Ford's comments.

Commissioner West said he was asked to present the request.

Commissioner Adamson asked if this could be presented in next year's
request.

Wake County Page 15 Printed on 8/21/2019


http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=26827
http://wake.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ed334301-d943-4f95-981c-a150cf3fcf12.docx

Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes August 12, 2019

Mr. Ellis said that Mr. Bill Greeves, Chief Information and Innovation Officer,
is developing a process for a public agency request.

Commissioners agreed to take a look at the request in the next budget
cycle.

Chair Holmes announced that Commissioners were invited to Wake
County South Wilmington Street Center this evening to meet foreign
leaders that are visiting Wake County to learn how Wake County is working
to reduce homelessness.

Adjourn

The meeting adjourned at 5:04 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

Denise M. Hogan, NCMCC
Clerk to the Board
Wake County Board of Commissioners

Wake County Page 16 Printed on 8/21/2019



